ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SCCI AL SERVI CES
STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 23, 2003
1:34 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair
Senator Lyda Green, Vice Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken

Senator Bettye Davis

Senat or G etchen CGuess

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 135( HES)
"An Act relating to marital and fam |y therapists.”

MOVED SCSHB 135(HES) OUT OF COWM TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 156

"An Act relating to the posting and giving of certain warnings
about drinking al cohol during pregnancy when selling or
di spensing pregnancy testing Kkits, birth control devices, or
birth control prescriptions.”

MOVED SB 156 OUT OF COWM TTEE

SENATE CONCURRENT RESCLUTI ON NO. 10
Est abli shing the Joint Legislative Charter School Task Force.

HEARD AND HELD

Confirmati on Heari ngs

M. Mark Doner - Professional Teaching Practices Conm ssion
PTPC)

M. Thomas Lanmal - PTPC

M. Laurence O daker - PTPC

Ms. Kinberly Jockusch - PTPC

Ms. Vivian Dailey - PTPC

M. Craig Baker - PTPC

~

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- DRAFT April 23, 2003



CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

HB 135 - No previous action to consider.

SB 156 - See Labor and Commerce m nutes dated 4/15/03.
W TNESS REG STER

Representative Peggy W1 son

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 135.

M. Larry Hol man, Chairperson
Marriage and Fam |y Therapy Regul atory Board
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported HB 135.

M. Wes Keller

Staff to Senator Dyson

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comrented on SB 156.

M. John Alcantra

Governnent Rel ations Director

Nat i onal Education Associ ation of Al aska ( NEAA)
114 2nd Street

Juneau AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SCR 10.

M. Kevin Sweeney, Legislative Liaison
Departnent of Education &

Early Devel opnent

801 W10'" st.

Juneau, AK 99801-1894

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SCR 10.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
TAPE 03-24, SIDE A

HB 135- MARI TAL & FAM LY THERAPI STS

CHAI R FRED DYSON cal l ed the Senate Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 1:34 p.m

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 2- DRAFT April 23, 2003



Present were Senators Guess, W/l ken, Davis and Dyson. The Chair
announced HB 135 to be up for consideration.

REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY W LSON, sponsor, said that HB 135 updates
the marital and famly therapist statutes to the standards of
ot her counseling services in the state and to national standards

as well. It adds this board to the |ist of boards that can
contract out for substance abuse treatnent by I|icensed
t herapists, gives the board authority to order a |icensed

therapist to submt to a reasonable physical or nenta
exam nation if the board has credible evidence to conclude that
the therapist's physical or nental capacity is at risk for safe
practice, allows individual client contact to be used toward
hours for licensing, and requires the therapist to comunicate
to a potential victim or |aw enforcenent officer a threat of
serious immnent harm if such a threat is nade by the client
during treatnent. It also inposes disciplinary sanctions wth
regard to therapist sexual msconduct and provides for sone
di scl osure of information as a consuner protection.

CHAIR DYSON asked if the law anticipates that the marriage and
famly therapist would be talking to the potential perpetrator
or knows them in regard to the provision that would allow the
therapist to conmunicate a threat to a potential victim or
police officer.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said that is correct.

CHAI R DYSON asked if his understanding is correct that this bil
will give that authority to the other people on boards.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON replied the other boards already have that
authority. It is being added here.

CHAI R DYSON asked if this bill makes any changes for the other
groups on the |ist.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON i ndicated it does not.

CHAI R DYSON asked for an explanation of the provision that wl|
allow client contact hours to be used towards |icensing.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON answered that in Alaska, especially in
rural areas, therapists are sonetines consulted to do famly
counseling, but do individual counseling also. Until now,
t herapi sts have not been able to count the individual counseling
hours for |icensing purposes.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- DRAFT April 23, 2003



CHAI R DYSON asked if it allows themto double count the hours.
REPRESENTATI VE WLSON replied it does not.
MR LARRY  HOLMAN, Chai r man, Marriage and Famly Therapy

Regul atory Board, explained that HB 135 is a collaborative
effort between the American Fam |y Therapy Regul atory Board and

the professional association. This bill is essential because it
provides better protection for the public in the areas
Representative WIlson talked about. In the area of sexual
m sconduct, it fills out guidelines simlar to those used by
other health disciplines. It prohibits a sexual relationship
with a client for two years after termination of active
treat nent. This bill also makes an exception to the

confidentiality law that is a wusual standard in therapy to
report potentially dangerous actions by a client or reveal ed by
aclient.

Most therapists provide a disclosure statenent, but it isn't
very clear sonetinmes. HB 135 asks them to disclose their
education, their areas of specialization, their fees and other
related information. It |imts the practice of marriage and
famly therapists to areas of their education or specialized
training. Al of +the provisions derive from many years of
practical experience where there has been difficulty either in
Alaska or in another state. He said marriage and famly
t herapi sts use the Anerican Association of Mrriage and Fam |y
Therapy Code of Ethics, but he has been told it is inportant to
actually put sonme of the code into law to spell it out nore
clearly.

CHAI R DYSON asked if a therapist violates the section on sexua
contact with a «client, that therapist would be subject to
actions against their license, not crimnal sanctions.

MR. HOLMAN replied that is correct.
SENATOR LYDA GREEN arrived at 1:45 p. m

SENATOR CGREEN said that |ast year when they dealt with this
bill, there were problenms with section 7, which says, "A client
may not be charged a fee by a licensed marital and famly
therapi st unless before the performance of the services the
client was furnished a copy of a professional disclosure
statenment that contained...."

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- DRAFT April 23, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE W LSON responded that was changed to direct the
statute to licensed therapists.

MR. HOLMAN responded that he wasn't sure of that.

SENATOR GREEN said she had never been shown a professional
di sclosure statenment in a doctor or dentist's office. However
HB 135 says the therapist would be punished for forgetting to
provide a litany of information to the client. She questioned
why the board would want to do that to its own nenbership and
asked, "Have they defrauded the client?"

MR. HOLMAN replied that their code of ethics requires therapists
to provide a disclosure, so soneone would not forget to do that.

CHAIR DYSON asked if that requirenment is in statute for other
rel ated di sciplines.

MR. HOLMAN replied the disclosure statenent |anguage is the sane
used in other disciplines, but he wasn't sure about the rest.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON explained when a client comes to a
therapist, the client could very likely be distraught over the
breakup of a nmarriage and may not be thinking clearly. That's
why it's so inportant for the client to know he or she bill get
t he di scl osure statenent.

CHAIR DYSON said he would hold the bill for further work. He
wanted to know if the sane disclosure requirenents were put on
the Board of Pr of essi onal Counselors and the Board of
Psychol ogi sts and Psychol ogi cal Associ at es.

SB 156- PREGNANCY ALCOHOL WARNI NG

CHAI R FRED DYSON announced SB 156, which he sponsored, to be up
for consideration. He explained that several years ago, Senator
Pearce introduced and passed a bill requiring that warnings
about the danger of drinking while pregnant be posted in bars.
He rem nded nenbers that prenatal al cohol poisoning of children
is the largest cause of permanent nental injury in our nation
and that Al aska, arguably, leads the nation in the rate of
prenat al al cohol poisoning of children.

CHAI R DYSON said last fall at the state FASFAE sunmmt, a parent
suggested the Legislature take the next step to increase
awar eness anongst sexually active people about the dangers of
pr enat al al cohol poi soning of children. He contacted the
Nat i onal Pharmacy Board and tal ked with pharmacists in the state

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- DRAFT April 23, 2003



who thought that should be done anyway. This bill requires that
pharmaci sts post a sign that says drinking while pregnant can
damage the unborn <child where prescriptions and equipnent
related to sexual activity are located and to provide that
information to custoners buying birth control devices or
pregnancy testing kits. No one has opposed this idea.

SENATOR GRETCHEN GUESS asked if they would be required to post a
sign as opposed to handing the information to everyone who cones
in to buy sonething.

CHAI R DYSON replied they are required to do both. One pharnaci st
told himhe was going to put a sticker on each package.

SENATOR GUESS asked if the pharmacy has the choice or whether it
woul d have to provide that piece of paper every tine.

CHAI R DYSON said he thought it was both. A sign would be posted
and the custonmer would get the infornmation.

SENATOR GQUESS said she was a little worried about the burden
this could place on a clerk at Fred Meyer, for instance, versus
t he signage, which may be nore effective.

MR, WES KELLER, staff to Senator Dyson, comented that the
person who actually hands the device to the recipient is
required to provide the piece of paper, but the penalty is on
t he owner or the nanager of the business.

SENATOR GUESS envisioned a scenario where a customer in Fred
Meyer went to the condom section and then to the checkout
counter and no one handed him a notice. She asked if the manager
of Fred Meyer woul d be penalized.

CHAIR DYSON replied if there wasn't a sticker on the package, a
clerk would be required to give the customer a piece of paper.
He assuned the store would have a supply of stickers at the
counter.

SENATOR GUESS asked if he didn't think that places an excessive
burden on busi ness.

CHAIR DYSON replied yes, but he didn't think it was any undue
burden, not wunlike requiring clerks to check for age when
selling tobacco. He added that according to the Division of
Public Health, the state spends $1.5 mllion on every FASFAE
child by the time that child reaches 18. He nmaintained, "M

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- DRAFT April 23, 2003



sense in the business comunity that | have talked to is that
they are glad to do this, particularly as a defense against
potential liability."

SENATOR GUESS said notification is a great goal, but she asked
him to think logistically about how it would take place in a
Fred Meyer store. She asked if the warning would be the sane as
that in Senator Pearce's |egislation.

CHAI R DYSON replied that he thought so.

SENATOR WLKEN noved to pass SB 156 from commttee wth
i ndi vi dual reconmendati ons. There were no objections and it was
so ordered.

2:09 p.m

SCR 10- CHARTER SCHOCL TASK FORCE

CHAI R FRED DYSON announced SCR 10 to be up for consideration.

MR.  JOHN ALCANTRA, Covernnment Relations Director, Nationa
Education Association of Alaska (NEAA), said that charter
schools in Al aska have been very successful and NEAA supports
them To make the task force as successful as possible, he
recommended that NEAA appoint a nenber to the task force because
that nmenber would bring know edge and experience and represent
the front line enployees who nake charter schools successful.
The NEAA supports a thorough exam nation of how the federal No
Child Left Behind Law is inpacting schools in Al aska, including
charter schools.

MR. KEVIN SWEENEY, Legislative Liaison, Departnment of Education
and Early Devel opnment (DEED) supported SCR 10, and said the
nunber of charter schools has grown significantly since their
inception and DEED envisions adding another 20 to 24 charter
schools in the next five years.

CHAI R DYSON asked him if DEED s position reflects the attitude
of the governor.

MR. SWEENEY said he hadn't talked to the governor about it, but
he didn't think there would be a problem since the governor
supports the idea of charter schools.

CHAIR DYSON said he knew the admnistration was |ooking for
funding for the startup of charter schools.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- DRAFT April 23, 2003



SENATOR GRETCHEN QGUESS added that [DEED] had found federal
funding and, if it conmes through, the state would not have to
fund it.

CHAI R DYSON asked if federal noney is available to staff the
task force.

MR. SWEENEY replied that DEED asked for $10 million for charter
school startup funds over the next five years and a portion of
those grants could probably be used for this activity. The bil
had no fiscal note and he didn't know if all costs would be
covered. Technically, DEED is not in the Ofice of the Governor
and he suggested anending the bill to include representation by
t he departnent.

[ SCR 10 was held for further work.]
TAPE 03-24, SIDE B
[2:23 - 3:00 p.m- Recess]

CHAIR DYSON called the neeting back to order and said the
commttee would take up the confirmation hearings for the
Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices Comm ssion (PTPC).

MR. MARK DONER, PTPC nominee, said he wanted to be on the
Comm ssi on because he could nake a difference in his profession.

SENATOR GREEN sai d he woul d be an excel |l ent appoi nt nent.

CHAI R DYSON said he shares Senator Geen’s high opinion of M.
Doner.

MR. THOVAS LAMAL, PTPC nom nee, said this appoi ntnent would give
him an opportunity to nmeet other professionals from around the
state, gain know edge and education in this area and have i nput
into the process.

SENATOR GARY W LKEN thanked him for serving and endorsed his
recomrendat i on.

MR. LAURENCE OLDAKER, PTPC, said he is the current chairman of
the PTPC and would |ike to continue in that capacity.

CHAI R DYSON asked what issues the board is dealing with now.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- DRAFT April 23, 2003



MR. OLDAKER replied that during the |ast decade, the main issues
were contract violations. Videos |like Good Touch, Bad Touch were
distributed around the state, and along with other factors,
awar eness of proper behavior of professional personnel wth
students increased. Those kinds of problens have |essened and
nore recent issues involve traditional contract violations.

M5. KIMBERLY JOCKUSCH, PTPC nom nee, said she feels strongly
about high ethical standards for her profession and wants to be
part of the process.

CHAIR DYSON asked her about the Wight Goup, which she
nmenti oned on her resune'.

M5. JOCKUSCH expl ained the Wight Goup is a commercial conpany
that sells books and also does a lot of training, primarily in
the area of literacy.

MS. VIVIAN DAILY, Principal, North Pole H gh School, said she is
the only principal representative on the conm ssion. The reason
she wants to serve is because the teaching profession should be
held to very high ethical standards.

[3:18 - 3:19 - at ease]

HB 135- MARI TAL & FAM LY THERAPI STS

CHAIR FRED DYSON announced HB 135 to be back wup for
consi derati on.

SENATOR LYDA GREEN noved to adopt Anmendnent 1 and objected for
the purpose of providing an explanation. She explained that
Amendnment 1 renoves the |anguage that says a client would not
have to pay if the disclosure information isn't provided. A new
introductory paragraph after "disclosure statenment” says,
"Before the performance of services, the client wll be
furnished a copy of a professional disclosure statenent that
contains...."

SENATOR CGREEN renoved her objection.

CHAIR DYSON announced that wth no further objections to
Amendnent 1, it was adopt ed.

SENATOR BETTYE DAVI S noved to pass SCSHB 135(HES) from conmttee

wi th individual objections. There were no objections and it was
so ordered.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 9- DRAFT April 23, 2003



CHAI R DYSON asked if anyone had comments on any of the other
nom nees.

MR. OLDAKER said he net Craig Baker during the last tw PTPC
neetings and he was well studied, norally strong and no-
nonsense, a real deep professional with a famly in Kodiak for
10 to 15 years. He appears to be a strong addition to the PTPC.

SENATOR GREEN noved to forward the nanes of the PTPC nom nees to
the full body. There were no objections and it was so ordered.

CHAI R DYSON adj ourned the nmeeting at 3:25 p. m

SENATE HES COW TTEE -10- DRAFT April 23, 2003



